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(c) An adult participating in an em-
ployment activity operated with WtW
funds, as described in §645.220(c) of this
subpart, must not be employed or as-
signed:

(1) When any other individual is on
layoff from the same or any substan-
tially equivalent job within the same
organizational unit;

(2) If the employer has terminated
the employment of any regular, unsub-
sidized employee or otherwise caused
an involuntary reduction in its work-
force with the intention of filling the
vacancy so created with the WtW par-
ticipant; and,

(3) If the employer has caused an in-
voluntary reduction to less than full
time in hours of any employee in the
same or substantially equivalent job
within the same organizational unit.

(d) Regular employees and program

participants alleging displacement
may file a complaint pursuant to
§645.270 of this part (section
403(a)(5)(J)(1)).

§645.270 What procedures are there to
ensure that currently employed
workers may file grievances regard-
ing displacement and that Welfare-
to-Work participants in employ-
ment activities may file grievances
regarding displacement, health and
safety standards and gender dis-
crimination?

(a) The State shall establish and
maintain a grievance procedure for re-
solving complaints from:

(1) Regular employees that the place-
ment of a participant in an employ-
ment activity operated with WtW
funds, as described in §645.220 of this
part, violates any of the prohibitions
described in §645.265 of this part; and

(2) Program participants in an em-
ployment activity operated with WtW
funds, as described in §645.220 of this
part, that any employment activity
violates any of the prohibitions de-
scribed in §§645.255(d), 645.260, or 645.265
of this part.

(b) Such grievance procedure should
include an opportunity for informal
resolution.

(¢) If no informal resolution can be
reached within the specified time as es-
tablished by the State as part of its
grievance procedure, such procedure
shall provide an opportunity for the
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dissatisfied party to receive a hearing
upon request.

(d) The State shall specify the time
period and format for the hearing por-
tion of the grievance procedure, as well
as the time period by which the com-
plainant will be provided the written
decision by the State.

(e) A decision by the State under
paragraph (d) of this section may be
appealed by any dissatisfied party
within 30 days of the receipt of the
State’s written decision, according to
the time period and format for the ap-
peals portion of the grievance proce-
dure as specified by the State.

(f) The State shall designate the
State agency which will be responsible
for hearing appeals. This agency shall
be independent of the State or local
agency which is administering, or su-
pervising the administration of the
State TANF and WtW programs.

(g) No later than 120 days of receipt
of an individual’s original grievance,
the State agency, as designated in
paragraph (f) of this section, shall pro-
vide a written final determination of
the individual’s appeal.

(h) The grievance procedure shall in-
clude remedies for violations of
§§ 645.255(d), 645.260, and 645.265 of this
part which may continue during the
grievance process and which may in-
clude:

(1) Suspension or termination of pay-
ments from funds provided under this
part;

(2) Prohibition of placement of a
WtW participant with an employer
that has violated §§645.255(b), 645.260,
and 645.265 of this part;

(3) Where applicable, reinstatement
of an employee, payment of lost wages
and benefits, and reestablishment of
other relevant terms, conditions, and
privileges of employment; and,

(4) Where appropriate, other equi-
table relief (section 403(a)(5)(J)(iv)).

(i) Participants alleging gender dis-
crimination by WtW programs that are
not part of the One-Stop system may
file a complaint using the grievance
system procedures described above.
Participants alleging gender discrimi-
nation by WtW programs that are part
of the One-Stop system may file a com-
plaint using the procedures developed
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by the State under the WIA non-
discrimination regulations at 29 CFR
37.70-317.80.

Subpart C—Additional Formula
Grant Administrative Stand-
ards and Procedures

§645.300 What constitutes an allow-
able match?

(a) A State is entitled to receive two
(2) dollars of Federal funds for every
one (1) dollar of State match expendi-
tures, up to the amount available for
allotment to the State based on the
State’s percentage for WtW formula
grant for the fiscal year. The State is
not required to provide a level of
match necessary to support the total
amount available to it based on the
State’s percentage for WtW formula
grant. However, if the proposed match
is less than the amount required to
support the full level of Federal funds,
the grant amount will be reduced ac-
cordingly (section 403(a)(5)(A)({)(D)).

(b) States shall follow the match or
cost-sharing requirements of the
“Common Rule” Uniform Administrative
Requirements for Grants and Cooperative
Agreements to State and Local Govern-
ments (codified for DOL at 29 CFR
97.24). Paragraphs (b)(1)(i) and (i),
(b)), and (b)(4) and (c)(1) of this sec-
tion are in addition to the common
rule requirements. Also, paragraphs in-
cluded in the common rule which re-
late to the use of donated buildings and
other real property as match have been
excluded from this provision.

(1) Only costs that would be allow-
able if paid for with WtW grant funds
will be accepted as match.

(i) Because the use of Federal funds is
prohibited for construction or purchase
of facilities or buildings except where
there is explicit statutory authority
permitting it, costs incurred for the
construction or purchase of facilities
or buildings shall not be acceptable as
match for a WtW grant.

(i1) Because the costs of construction
or purchase of facilities or buildings
are unallowable as match, the donation
of a building or property as a third
party in-kind contribution is also unal-
lowable as a match for a WtW grant.
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(2) A match or cost-sharing require-
ment may be satisfied by either or both
of the following:

(i) Allowable costs incurred by the
grantee, subgrantee or a cost type con-
tractor under the assistance agree-
ment. This includes allowable cost
borne by non-Federal grants or by oth-
ers and cash donations from non-Fed-
eral third parties.

(ii) The value of third party in-kind
contributions applicable to the FY pe-
riod to which the cost-sharing or
matching requirement applies.

(3) No more than seventy-five percent
(75%) of the total match expenditures
may be in the form of third party in-
kind contributions.

(4) Match expenditures must be re-
corded in the books of account of the
entity that incurred the cost or re-
ceived the contribution. These
amounts may be rolled up and reported
as aggregate State level match.

(c) Qualifications and exceptions—

(1) The matching requirements may
not be met by the use of an employer’s
share of participant wage payments
(e.g., employer share of OJT wages).

(2) Costs borne by other Federal
grant agreements. A cost-sharing or
matching requirement may not be met
by costs borne by another Federal
grant. This prohibition does not apply
to income earned by a grantee or sub-
grantee from a contract awarded under
another Federal grant.

(3) General revenue sharing. For the
purpose of this section, general revenue
sharing funds distributed under 31
U.S.C. 6702 are not considered Federal
grant funds.

(4) Cost or contributions counted to-
wards other Federal cost-sharing re-
quirements. Neither costs nor the val-
ues of third party in-kind contribu-
tions may count towards satisfying a
cost-sharing or matching requirement
of a grant agreement if they have been
or will be counted towards satisfying a
cost-sharing or matching requirement
of another Federal grant agreement, a
Federal procurement contract, or any
other award of Federal funds.

(5) Costs financed by program in-
come. Costs financed by program in-
come, as defined in 29 CFR 97.25, shall
not count towards satisfying a cost-
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